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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Nevada-California-Oregon Railway locomotive house and machine shop is located in
Reno on East Fourth Street. The building was constructed in 1889, after a disastrous
fire had destroyed much of the city. It is presently in good condition, although it
has undergone some alterations through the years. The building now serves as a kitchen
appliance store.

The structure is found in Section 11, Township 19N, Range 19E, oriented in approximately
a south to north direction on parcel number 2-307-3 of the Evans North Addition. It is
located in one of theoldest industrial sections of Reno.

The N-C-0 Railway locomotive louse is a ‘one-=story rectangular building whi¢h din fts -
original form was approximately 35" by 143") 'The foundation ‘is constructed of rubble-
stone. The walls are common-bond brick on three sides; ‘the east’ wall-was built‘of wood
to -allow for expansion. 'Expansion occurred dt two points in the buildings' history, the
first -a temporary addition in-1901, -the second a permanent brick ‘addition in the 1940s.
One-third of the west face ‘and all of the brick of ‘'the south face of the original build-
ing has been covered with brown paint. The gable roof had four monitor syklights with
glass plates in the sides, these being situated three feet above the slate-covered roof.
The skylight's were replaced later with a clerestory type of gable roof. This has also
been removed and three air vents have been added to the roof. In addition, a brick
chimney was added to the west side.

The structure presently has 8 vertical windows on the west elevation, although the 3
at the south end are boarded up. No windows appear on the 1890 or 1899 Sanborn maps.
In 1904 8 are noted on the west elevation. On the south elevation there is presently
one boarded up vertical window and one large horizontal window and glass door. The
boarded up window does not appear .on any Sanborn maps, but does appear on an aerial
photograph taken of Reno in 1909. The horizontal window and glass door appear to be a
fairly recent :alteration. . .. . e v

When it was completed in 1889, the building was used to store narrow gauge locomotives.
In 1901, with the construction of a connected wooden carshop 130' by 90' on the east
side, the original structure was divided in two - a machine shop being located in the
southern half, and the northern portion being kept as a locomotive house. The wooden
car shop addition was a temporary one and was removed sometime around 1910. A new
eight~stall roundhouse was constructed adjacent to the original locomotive house on

the east side. The former locomotive house was then used entirely as a machine shop.
In 1917, the Western Pacific Railway purchased the N-C-0 line into Reno. Since the
narrow gauge terminal facilities could not be used by the standard gauge Western Pacific,
the building was leased in 1921 to Crane Company of Nevada for use as a plumbing supply
warehouse. In 1940 the eight-stall roundhouse was destroyed by fire.

In the mid-1940s an addition was added on to the east side of the original locomotive
house. The one-story brick addition is rectangular, being 40' by 143'. It was built
on a concrete foundation and has a sloping 14' down to 8' shed roof with three air vents
on top. The addition has five horizontal windows on the east facade, one covered with
paint, two large horizontal windows on the east facade and two more on the north. A
portion of the brick has also been covered with paint. The building was used as a
storage warehouse until 1963.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Nevada-California—Oregon Railway locomotive house and machine shop is the oldest

extant struecture of -its type in Reno.

It is the second oldest:locomotive house in the

state, -after the Carson City Virginia and Truckee efigine house,  completed-in 1873.
-Along with the N-C-0- Depot (1910), now-Slerra Wine -and Liquor, which was entered on

the National -Register in 1980, it is the ‘last remnant:in Nevada of one-of the twentieth
century's longest narrow -gauge railrcads.- Eventually, segments of the N-C-0 formed im-
. portant standard -gauge links.in botlh the Western Pacific Railroad :and the Southern
Pacific Railroad networks.

The N-C-O underwent five changes of title during its forty-nine year history.

The rail-

road was first organized on June 1, 1880, as the Nevada and Oregon Railroad Company. It
was projected to run both south to the mining camps near Aurora, Nevada and north to the

California-Oregon border at the western shore of Goose Lake.

was soon abandoned. Instead construction progressed slowly north, until the northernmost

The idea of building south

terminus was reached in Lakeview, Oregon in 1912, a total distance of 238 miles.

PR

Y B .

The original Nevada an& Ofégdn Railroad subseqﬁentiy‘fén into fiﬁanéial difficulties
and the property was sold on April 17, 1884 to the banking firm of Moran Brothers for

$372,534.21.
still vested in the Moran Brothers.

In January, 1885, the name was changed to Nevada and California, ownership
The name changed for the last time when the Morans

formed the Nevada-Calfornia-Oregon Railway to take over the property operated in the
name of the Nevada.and California.

In May, 1889, a major fire destroyed a large section of Reno, including the N-C-0's

holdings in east Reno.

Damages were estimated at $15,000.
built a new brick depot, freight house, and locomotive house.

The railroad immediately
Construction on the

locomotive house, which is the subject of this nomination, started in June and the

structure was completed in September of 1889.
expansion.

The building was designed to allow for

This occurred in 1901, when a temporary wooden car shop was added to the

east side of the structure.

used as a machine shop and part kept to store locomotives.

The original locomotive house was then divided, part being
After the wooden car shop

was removed and a new eight-still brick roundhouse was constructed adjacent to the
original locomotive house, it was used exclusively as a machine shop.

In 1917, the N-C-O decided to sell to the Western Pacific Railroad sixty-four miles

of rail line, from Hackstaff Crossing, subsequently called Herlong, to Reno.

was $700,000. 1Included in the sale were the N-C-0 terminal facilties in Reno, which

The price

included the machine shop, an imposing two-story passenger depot, and a roundhouse, on
a block bordered by Surprise Valley Road, Fourth, Peavine, and Sixth Streets.
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Presently, customers enter the building through the south front facade on East Fourth Street.
There is a small office located in the older part of the building with a kitchen appliance
showroom adjacent to it on the east side. Most of the structure is now used for storage.
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The N-C-0 shortly thereafter moved its headquarters and shops to Alturas, Calfornia, the
mid-point of the shortened 171 mile line. The N-C-0 became an isolated feeder railroad,
beginning in southern Oregon and terminating in eastern California. The Southern Pacific
Railroad purchased the rest of the railroad in April, 1925, although the N-C-0 kept its
corporate identity until September, 1929. ‘Unlike other Nevada railroads, the N-C-0 was
not dependent upon mining enterprises. The N-C-0 relied instead on the cattle, sheep,
and lumber industries for its business.

Since the Western Pacific could not use the narrow gauge terminal facilities at Reno, the
railroad either leased or sold them. The only exception was the N-C-0 Depot, which was used
by the WP as their headquarters and station in Reno. The old locomotive house and machine
shop was leased in 1921 to the Crane Company of Nevada, a branch of the large plumbing sup-
ply firm headquartered in Chicago, Illinois. The Crane Company operated their plumbing supply
business out of the structure until 1963. Since then a number of small businesses have op-
erated out of the building.

The Western Pacific sold the old locomotive house and machine shop in 1957 to the Yancy
Company of Reno. TIn 1973, the property was purchased by the present owner.

The old N-C-0 Railway locomotive house and machine shop stands today as a notable reminder
of Nevada's railroad heritage.

-~
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as recorded November 12, 1957 in Book 460 of Deeds, at page 162, Records of Washoe
County, Nevada, thence from said point of beginning continuing South 76° 21' 20" west
along said northerly line of East 4th Street, a distance of 146.45'; thence north 13°

38" 40" West 230.72 feet; thence North 74° 35' 15" East, 146.24', to the most westerly
corner of said parcel of land conveyed to Yancy Company; thence South 13° 42' 45" East
along the southwesterly line of said parcel of land conveyed to Yancy Company, a distance
of 235.23', to the point of beginning.
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